CAMP WILLIAMS HISTORY

DESCRIPTION AND HISTORY 

Camp Williams is a National Guard Training Site operated by the Utah Army National Guard [UTARNG]. The Camp Williams cantonment is located in Township 4 South, Range 1 West, Section 26, in Utah and Salt Lake counties, 26 miles south of Salt Lake City in Riverton, Utah.  The 28,000-acre military reservation and training area has a billeting capacity for 2,800 troops within the cantonment.  Camp Williams was established in 1914 as a permanent maneuver ground for training National Guard units during World War I.  The facility evolved into an annual encampment with the establishment of permanent and semi-permanent buildings within the cantonment in 1927.  The camp was expanded over the years, with peak construction occurring during World War II and the onset of the Cold War in the late 1940s and early 1950s.

Today, training facilities at the Camp Williams military reservation consist of small-arms weapons firing ranges, artillery firing points, and maneuvering areas.  The cantonment contains an assortment of administration buildings, mess halls, classrooms, warehouses, workshops, and maintenance facilities.   Also within Camp Williams are a noncommissioned officers’ club, an officers’ club, a cafe, barber shop, weight training room, volleyball courts, baseball field, medical clinic, mail services, two swimming pools, laundry facilities, and a post exchange.  Many of these facilities are housed in older military buildings that date to the initial 1927 period of permanent camp construction and to later expansions through the 1930s, World War II, and the early Cold War period (AINW 2001: 1).

SUMMARY OF CULTURAL RESOURCE PROJECTS ASSOCIATED WITH HISTORIC STRUCTURES


A reconnaissance-level survey conducted in 1988 identified 101 historic period structures at Camp Williams (Southworth 1988).  Of these, 20 structures dating from 1927-1930 and 49 structures dating from the World War II era were identified as potentially significant resources.  The survey recommended further research to determine whether these structures were eligible for the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP).  It also recommended that the 69 structures should be documented according to the standards of the Historic American Buildings Survey (HABS) prior to remodeling or replacement.  To date, no structures have been documented according to these standards.


In 1998, a cultural resource study documented the history of cultural resource investigations on UTARNG facilities, including Camp Williams (Anderson 1998).  The study identified 82 structures that were possibly eligible for the NRHP; these were then assessed as part of an intensive-level historic building survey conducted in 2001 (AINW2001).

The intensive-level survey… identified 23 resources within the Camp Williams cantonment as eligible for listing in the NRHP…  Four defined periods of historical significance were identified that provided the context for evaluating the properties.  The four periods are: 1) the 1927-1929 cantonment development period; 2) the 1930s Works Progress Administration (WPA) improvement period; 3) the 1942-1943 World War II training period; and 4) the early Cold War period, 1946-1956 (AINW 2001: 1).


After further review by UTARNG and the Utah State Historic Preservation Office (UTSHPO), the list of structures and features potentially eligible for listing in the NRHP was limited to 18.  An unknown number of other buildings, structures, and designed landscapes within UTARNG stewardship may be eligible in the coming years.  Presently, only one building is listed on the NRHP, Structure #8100, the Hostess House or Officers’ Club.  Eligible and listed structures include:

Structure #1180: Quonset Hut
Structure #3020: Enlisted Men’s Masonry Latrine

Structure #3040: Enlisted Men’s Masonry Latrine

Structure #3080: Enlisted Men’s Masonry Latrine

Structure #3100: Enlisted Men’s Masonry Latrine

Structure #4143: Enlisted Men’s Battalion Bath House

Structure #5080: Combined Kitchen and Mess Hall

Structure #5100: Combined Kitchen and Mess Hall

Structure #5110: Masonry Latrine

Structure #5130: Battalion Headquarters

Structure #5150: Masonry Latrine

Structure #6150: Recreation Hall

Structure #7020: Outdoor Amphitheater

Structure #7030: Combined Kitchen and Mess Hall

Structure #7060: Dispensary

Structure #8100: Hostess House and WPA Stone Wall

East Parade Field
Rock Masonry Irrigation Ditches
Camp Williams Map
The Historic Structures Maintenance and Treatment Plan (HSMT Plan) was developed in 2005-2006 through the collaboration of UTARNG, CH2M HILL, Oliver Conservation Group (OCG), and Northface Solutions, and in consultation with the National Guard Bureau (NGB), the UTSHPO, the Advisory Council on Historic Preservation (ACHP), and other interested stakeholders.  Originally, the development of an HSMT Plan was cited as a specific mitigation stipulation in the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the NGB, the UTARNG, and the UTSHPO regarding the mitigation of adverse effects to Structure #117, the Warehouse.  The scope of the plan was expanded to include all of the historic structures eligible for listing on the NRHP at Camp Williams, as identified above, and other historic UTARNG structures in the State of Utah.  

The UTARNG has a legal obligation to record and preserve its history, as outlined in the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (NHPA), especially Sections 106, 110, and 101(d)(6).  But the UTARNG is also a living and evolving entity that must be allowed to change, adapt, and expand according to new technologies and national demands.  Historic preservation must work with the UTARNG mission, while the mission must consider its effects on cultural resources.  The purpose of the HSMT Plan is to help strike this balance by:

1) fulfilling the obligations and requirements of the UTARNG under federal, state, and NGB laws and guidelines;

2) streamlining the Section 106 compliance procedure;

3) educating the maintenance staff, building tenants and the public on the history and significance of the structures;

4) identifying appropriate maintenance and repair techniques and procedures; and

5) planning for future updates of the plan as new properties become at least 50 years old and thus potentially eligible for the NRHP.

ARCHITECTURE OF CAMP WILLIAMS


The following is excerpted from the “Historic Context Statement” developed by Archaeological Investigations Northwest, Inc., as part of an intensive level historic structures survey at Camp Williams (AINW 2001: 3-5).

Introduction


In an effort to improve the training of the UTARNG during World War I, the state of Utah developed a target and maneuvering range on 18,700 acres at Jordan Narrows.  The area had originally been set aside by Presidential order in 1914 as a military reserve.  Between 1914 and 1927, the UTARNG intermittently used the military reserve as a training and encampment facility known as Camp Wedgewood (see Camp Williams Historic Photographs
Camp Williams Cantonment Development, 1927-1929


In order to develop a permanent cantonment area at the reserve, the state bought 153 acres along the east edge of the reserve in 1927.  Permanent improvements that were funded by federal monies began to be built in earnest on a portion of this acreage.  Seventeen structures were completed at the camp in 1927, when it became known as the Jordan Narrows Military Reservation.  The structures included nine battery kitchen and mess halls, one officer’s kitchen and mess hall, two battalion bathhouses and latrines for enlisted men, one bathhouse and latrine for officers, a water supply system, a sewage disposal system, an incinerator, and a pump house.  The latrines had toilets, showers, urinals, and sinks, with hot water supplied by a boiler in the building.  Over 100 lumber tent-floors were built for supporting white-canvas conical tents to house the troops during training.  Also built were structures used for feeding and watering horses in the one-regiment camp (Alexander and Arrington 1965, Roberts 1973, Utah National Guard 1927-1928).


In 1928, the UTARNG officially re-named the camp for Brigadier General W.G. Williams, who as adjutant general had worked to acquire the cantonment area.  At that time, improvements were made to the cantonment, including the construction of a large storehouse, an administration building, a large recreation hall, and the installation of an electrical lighting system.  The camp was slated for additional improvement in 1929 with the use of federal monies.  Built that year were a bathhouse for officers, an officer’s kitchen and mess hall, a camp exchange building, new tent floors, and seven new feed racks.  The Adjutant General’s Biennial Report for 1929-1930 contains photographs of some of the permanent structures constructed on Camp Williams during the 1927-1929 period (Alexander and Arrington 1965, Roberts 1973, Utah National Guard 1929-1930).


Three resources from the 1927-1929 period are considered significant and eligible for listing in the NRHP:


Structure #4143: Enlisted Men’s Battalion Bathhouse


Structure #6150: Recreation Hall


East Parade Field
WPA Improvement Period, 1930s


In 1931, the state purchased an additional 199 acres for the military reservation.  The move from horse drawn to mechanized service in the early 1930s caused the Camp Williams cantonment to undergo further changes.  A steel-frame warehouse was built to store and service motorized equipment.  Also, an infirmary and a caretaker’s cottage (presumably for maintenance and landscaping) were built.  These projects involved the assistance of federal funds.  Later, the National Guard received substantial assistance from the 1933 Civil Works Administration (CWA) and from the 1935 WPA, federal programs established by President Franklin Delano Roosevelt as part of the New Deal during the Great Depression.  President Roosevelt designed the programs to provide work for the unemployed.  Cooperative funding in the WPA program called for two-thirds federal dollars to be matched with one-third state or local funds for all authorized projects.  The military made numerous proposals to the WPA for funds for specific improvement projects at Camp Williams during the late 1930s and early 1940s (Information on file, UTARNG, Draper, Utah).


By 1938, $220,000 had been spent on the camp, and another $150,000 in WPA funds had also been committed to camp improvements.  The UTARNG completed the following projects using WPA funds: the construction of a narrow, mortared irrigation ditch along the main avenues in Camp Williams for irrigating the tree-lined streets, an English Tudor Revival style reception hall constructed by the CWA from native stone that was called the Hostess House, and an Olympic-size concrete swimming pool and associated bathhouse with roof-top cupola.  The Hostess House (1934), now the Officers’ Club, is listed in the National Register of Historic Places.  See Camp Williams Historic Photographs for an aerial view of the cantonment as it appeared in 1939 (Alexander and Arrington 1965, Roberts 1973, Information on file, UTARNG, Draper, Utah). 

Two resources from the 1930s WPA period are considered significant and eligible for listing in the NRHP or have already been listed (Structure #8100):


Structure #8100: Hostess House


Rock Masonry Irrigation Ditches
World War II National Defense, 1942-1943


The United States responded to the outbreak of war in Europe in 1939 by providing airplanes to Great Britain in 1940-1941 and by accelerating rearmament and instigating compulsory military service, even though the U.S. had not yet entered World War II.  With the December 7, 1941, attack on Pearl Harbor by the Japanese, the U.S. was officially at war.  Four days later, Germany and Italy also declared war on the U.S.  In preparation for the military response, the UTARNG entered federal service; and Camp Williams was turned over to the regular Army and served as a main training center for troops entering active duty. Camp Williams easily accommodated the training needs of the Army as it increased troop capacity to 2,201 troops in 1941 and nearly 5,000 in 1942-1943.  By June 1943, the Army had constructed 100 permanent and temporary structures within the camp to billet and train the large number of troops.


Acreage in Camp Williams was also increased to accommodate the large number of troops in training.  As early as 1940, a new west section that was originally planned in 1938 was unified with the original 1927 encampment by a mortared stone irrigation ditch.  In this west section, additional barracks, kitchen/mess halls, and latrines were built and three rows of tents were erected for the line officers, the battalion field staff, and the regimental field staff, all along the south edge of the west parade/drill field.  A photograph taken during construction shows that each canvas tent was supported by a lumber frame (Utah State Historical Society; Elmer G. Thomas Photograph Collection C-10, Camp Williams, Box 1, File 5, [circa 1942-1943]).  The west section of camp was wired for electricity when it was built (National Guard of Utah, February 1938, Camp Layout and Electric Distribution for West Half of Camp, on file, Facility Engineering Structure #706, Camp Williams).


In November 1944, the Army concluded training at Camp Williams.  The camp had played an important role in America’s military response to World War II.  Undeniably, the war brought profound changes to all aspects of American society and is considered one of the most significant historical events in American history.

Eight resources from the World War II period are considered significant and eligible for listing in the NRHP:

Structure #118: Quonset Hut

Structures #5080, #5100, and #7030: Combined Kitchen and Mess Halls

Structure #5130: Battalion Headquarters

Structure #5110 and #5150: Masonry Latrines

Structure #7060: Dispensary

The Cold War, 1948-1956


In the late 1940s, Camp Williams underwent further physical change and enlargement.  An aerial view of the arrangement of structures and the extent of the cantonment during this period (see Camp Williams Historic Photographs).  The UTARNG reorganized after the war with an emphasis on stockpiling aircraft, artillery weapons, trucks, and other equipment.  In 1947, control of Camp Williams was returned to the state of Utah and by 1949 all improvement projects were under state control.  During this period, the airstrip was enlarged and three enlisted men’s latrines were built.  In the late 1940s and early 1950s, the UTARNG also spent a considerable amount of federal money on fortifying U.S. defense mechanisms due to the onset of the Cold War.  The year 1949 emerged as a critical time due to mounting Soviet aggression in Eastern Europe, the explosion of the Soviet’s first atomic warhead that year, and the establishment of communism in mainland China.  The following year, communist North Korea invaded U.S.-supported South Korea, causing the United States to enter the conflict.


Sixty percent of the Utah National Guard was mobilized during the Korean War (1950-1953).  New units were organized and about 3,000 men continued to meet for annual encampments at Camp Williams.  Facilities were continually improved for federal duty.  For example, over two hundred tents were added in 1950 and another latrine was built.  A Post Exchange building and a Headquarters building were moved onto camp from Fort Douglas.  Extensions were added to the mess halls in 1949-1950 to accommodate more troops.  Recreation facilities were built to provide off-duty opportunities for the guardsmen in training.  Baseball diamonds and an outdoor amphitheater with a seating capacity of 4,000 appeared in 1951.  Also, sidewalks were built within the cantonment.  During the 1951-1952 period, the water system underwent improvement and 19 temporary World War II (1942) buildings were renovated with the addition of aluminum siding (Alexander and Arrington 1965, Roberts 1973, Utah National Guard 1948-1950, 1950-1952, 1954-1956).


During the 1955-1956 fiscal period, the federal government supported further improvements at Camp Williams.  At this time, Cold War tensions relaxed, only to reemerge by the end of the decade.  On Camp Williams, the row of “black buildings” (probably the long row of barracks, no longer extant, that were erected during the early 1940s) were rehabilitated, roofs on various buildings and the warehouse were repaired, and a latrine was enlarged.  The old tent rows and metal frames were removed and wooden/canvas structures called hutments were built in their place.  In addition, several buildings were winterized and four new barracks were built.  An aerial view of the cantonment as it appeared circa 1959 is found in Camp Williams Historic Photographs  (Alexander and Arrington 1965, Roberts 1973, Utah National Guard 1954-1956).


The early Cold War period was a significant era in American history.  The Cold War had a marked impact on world affairs as well as a profound influence on U.S. national diplomacy, security, military intelligence, the economy, and society.  Camp Williams played an important role during America’s response to this volatile period, especially for its role in training troops for the Korean War.


Since the 1960s, the UTARNG has continued to build new structures and upgrade or demolish older buildings at Camp Williams in support of its training missions.  An aerial view of the camp as it appeared in 1966 shows that most of the recent changes occurred after this period (see Camp Williams Historic Photographs).  Today, representative examples of buildings from each major expansion period of the camp still exist, although most have undergone some form of alteration.

Five resources from the Cold War period are considered significant and eligible for listing in the NRHP:

Structures #3020, #3040, #3080, and 3100: Enlisted Men’s Latrines

Structure #7020: Outdoor Amphitheater

1960s to the Present


UTARNG altered many of the older structures on the Camp Williams cantonment during periods of moratorium on new construction.  While the National Guard had no funds for new construction, money was often available for the alteration of existing structures.  Even if a new building was allowed to be constructed, regulations made it necessary to tear down an equivalent amount of square footage (meaning an older building had to go).  Because of these policies, many of the older structures within the camp have been razed and all have been altered to some degree.  The bulk of building removal occurred in the 1990s.  Fortunately, may of the original 1927-1929 structures remain, although in highly-altered states.


In conclusion, Camp Williams was historically a highly structured military encampment characterized by neat rows of well-kept tents and buildings.  An elliptical drill/parade field divided the original east section of camp into north and south portions—the north for the enlisted men and the south, near the curve in the field, for the officers.  The camp was heavily oriented to the outdoors.  The troops slept first in tents, then in open-air hutments as late as the 1960s.  There were two fields for drills and parades.  The mess halls had screen doors and large screened windows with hinged wooden shutters for airflow and ventilation.  All of the buildings had large metal ventilators on the roofs to vent rising hot air.  Recreational activities were especially oriented to the outdoors, including baseball, swimming, and an open-air amphitheater.  This architectural response to the environment is not as evident today as it was in the past, when the cantonment was primarily an encampment for the outdoor physical training of the troops.

Structure #4143: Enlisted Men’s Battalion Bathhouse

[image: image1.jpg]



Building #4143
Constructed 1927

Architectural Description

The long, rectangular latrine building, #4143, in the northeast portion of the cantonment, has a concrete foundation, tongue-and-groove (drop) wood siding, wood cornerboards, and composition shingle roof.  The original wood-muntin windows have been replaced with aluminum sliding windows, but within the original wood frames.  The original overhanging eaves with exposed rafters on each gable end are intact.  Original tongue-and-groove roofing is visible beneath the composition shingles.  The original double, five-panel doors and two single three-panel doors with upper transoms remain on the south elevation.  Although the original metal flue on the roof, used to vent the water heater, remains, three metal ventilators are no longer present.  The original wooden louvre vent remains in the east gable peak.  The size of the building was increased by 40% in 1929-1930.  Judging from aerial photographs, the addition was made to the west end of the building.  A portion of the interior retains the original 3 3/4-inch tongue and-groove wall.

History

The building was originally a bathhouse and latrine for enlisted men that was built in 1927.  It was constructed during the establishment of Camp Williams as a permanent annual encampment.  The enlisted men occupied tents located south of the latrines.  The latrine originally contained showers, water closets (24 toilets), urinals, a lavatory (row of sinks), a hot water heater, and a water tank.  Structure #4143 is one of the oldest buildings remaining within the Camp Williams cantonment and has strong historical associations to the early history of the camp.  It is currently used for storage.

Xx scan and add Utah Office of Preservation “Historic Site Form” from AINW
Structure #6150: Recreation Hall
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Building #6150
Constructed 1928

Architectural Description

The Camp Williams Recreation Hall, Structure #6150, is located in the central portion of the cantonment.  The large, rectangular building has a slightly elliptical roof form and rests on a concrete foundation.  The building has 8-inch aluminum lap siding, metal soffits, fascia, and gutters (all added in 1986), aluminum frame windows, and four of the original steel-frame multi-pane windows.  The building was re-roofed in 1986.  A series of six decorative pilasters are found on each long axis, the east and west elevations.  Modern aluminum and glass double doors are located on the north, east, and west elevations.  A small, rectangular, gable-roof addition (not present in a 1938 photograph but present in a 1952 photograph) is located on the south gable-end.  There are three coolant units on the roof, and a cellular tower and satellite dish are located on the building.

History

The building was constructed in 1928 as one of the original structures in Camp Williams.  The building was built at a cost of $4,346.00, two thousand dollars of which was met by the Military Fund and the remainder by National Guard organizational contributions.  The building retains its original configuration, several of the original windows, and the original decorative pilasters, all character-defining features.  In addition, the function of the building has remained somewhat the same since 1928, although it was at one time (1952) also used as a theater.  For these reasons, the recreation hall is considered a significant building.

Xx scan and add Utah Office of Preservation “Historic Site Form” from AINW
East Parade Field
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East Parade Field
Constructed c. 1927

Architectural Description

The East Parade Field is a rectangular, grassy field that was originally an elliptical shape.  The field no longer retains the characteristic shape although the original field area is intact.  A 75-foot mortared stone wall with concrete cap is located on the north boundary of the parade field, opposite Structure #606.

History

The East Parade Field was platted in 1927 when the camp was known as Jordan Narrows Military Reservation.  The elliptical shape was designed as part of the original configuration of the layout for the cantonment.  The curved border was lined with tent structures from the 1930s up to the 1960s.  An aerial photograph of the camp taken in 1989 shows a faint outline of the curving border.  The East Parade Field is significant because it is an original feature from the establishment of the camp as a permanent training center in 1927.  The field was an important gathering point for the Governor’s Day Parade, held annually at Camp Williams.  It is still used as a parade field today.

Xx scan and add Utah Office of Preservation “Historic Site Form” from AINW
Structure #8100: Hostess House and WPA Stone Wall
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Structure #8100
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WPA Stone Wall
Building #8100
Constructed 1934

Architectural Description

The Hostess House is a public works-sponsored structure in the Period Revival/English Tudor style.  It is a one-story building with a broad, steeply pitched gable roof.  The plan is basically rectangular and there are two projecting gables placed off-center on the principal elevation.  Marking the location of the main entrance, these gables are slightly off-set and serve to emphasize the asymmetry of the English Tudor design.  Half-timbering, another trademark of the English Tudor style, is found in the gable end of the rear (east) cross gable.  The frame walls are faced with stone in a random, rustic fashion and there are several large stone chimneys placed internally on the ridge.  The windows are small and of the casement type.  The building remains in good original condition and the red asphalt roof is the only major alteration.

Directly northeast of the Hostess House along 1st Street is a rock retaining wall made of concrete-mortared native stone.  The approximately 225-ft wall marks a portion of the east camp boundary.  It measures five to seven feet in height and 17 inches in width.  The stone wall appears to be 1930s Works Progress Administration craftsmanship.

History

The Hostess House building was begun as a Civil Works Administration project on February 20, 1934.  Five months were required to complete the construction of the mortared-rock building.  Part of the money, $11,000, was appropriated from the Military Fund of the State Armory.  The federal government covered labor costs at $31, 462.17.  The stone, sand, and gravel used in construction were quarried from the Camp Williams Military Reservation on low ridges one-half mile from the cantonment.  Some of the stone came from the nearby Eva Alice Hartwell property.  In all, 327 tons of stone were used for the building.  William S. Featherstone applied the original roofing (it has been replaced with red composition asphalt shingles) and a man named Brossaud fabricated the ornamental ironwork for the fireplace, doors, and other interior locations.  The electrical fixtures and doors were hand made locally.  When completed, a lawn was planted around the building.  A dedication and open house were hosted on October 27, 1934.  The building was used as a social hall and gathering place by the mothers, wives, sisters, and “sweethearts” of the men stationed at Camp Williams.  A swimming pool and observation deck were added to the back of the property at a later date.  Today the building is used for the Officers’ Club.

The Hostess House building was listed as part of a thematic nomination to the National Register of Historic Places on April 1, 1985.  A Historic Structure Report for the building was prepared in 2006 (Cooper Roberts Simonsen Associates and Oliver Conservation Group 2006).

Xx scan and add Utah Office of Preservation “Historic Site Form” and National Register Nomination from AINW
Rock Masonry Irrigation Ditches
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Masonry Ditch
Constructed 1938-1940

Architectural Description

The continuous rock-masonry ditch encircles Camp Williams on 1st Street, Utah Avenue, 3rd Street, and Wyoming Avenue.  The ditch is also found on either side of 2nd Street, along the north side of Nevada Avenue, and a parallel strip follows a portion of the west half of Utah Avenue.  The ditch has been covered over or removed in some places, but overall the landscape feature is intact.  The ditch is composed of native quarry stone mortared with concrete.  The ditch is nine inches in height, nine inches wide at the bottom, and 22 inches wide at the top.  The concrete caps along each side wall are four to six inches in width.

History

The construction of the concrete and rock-lined irrigation ditches was proposed to the Works Progress Administration (WPA) by the Utah National Guard in December of 1939.  The Guard frequently sent project proposals to the WPA for improvements to camp facilities.  In this way, federal funds were garnered, people were supplied with jobs, and the camp was improved for increased training purposed.  The irrigation ditches, however, were more so a necessary part of camp aesthetics rather than a military-related improvement.  The ditches were designed and built to channel irrigation water to newly-planted trees along the camp avenues.  The stone was obtained from a quarry west of the cantonment on the military reservation.  The ditches were built using characteristic mortared rock workmanship often employed by the WPA.  The ditch project was started in 1938 when it was classed as the first “curb and gutter” project under a federal appropriation of $22,155.  The second phase was completed around 1940 for $51,360.  Approximately 90% of the irrigation ditch is intact and original, and is currently used for stormwater and irrigation drainage.

Xx scan and add Utah Office of Preservation “Historic Site Form” from AINW
Structure #1180: Quonset Hut
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Building #1180
Constructed c.1943

Architectural Description

The Quonset hut, Structure #1180, is located along the north elevation of the large warehouse (formerly Building #117) in the north part of the cantonment.  The metal structure is actually two barrel-roof buildings put together to form one storage facility.  The building has a concrete slab foundation and corrugated metal cladding on a metal frame.  There are no windows and the double entry-doors on the east elevation are plywood.  The west elevation has a five-panel, original door, a small four-pane window, and a louvered vent.  The metal roofing extends over the entrances on each end (the east and west elevations).  A series of six metal ventilators are located on the barrel roof.

History

It is unknown when the Quonset hut was built but it was probably constructed during the 1942-1943 World War II federal expansion period at Camp Williams.  Quonset huts appeared on the west side of the Camp Williams cantonment, north of Wyoming Avenue, in the mid-1950s.  These Quonset huts may have been moved to the cantonment from an outside location.  A 1965 aerial photograph shows the subject Quonset hut in its present location.  It is possible this Quonset hut was moved here from the west end of the cantonment.  Quonset huts are a unique World War II-era construction style in American architecture.  Although in general not a rare form since they were considered surplus after the war and today many have secondary uses, the subject Quonset hut is the only example on Camp Williams. 

Xx scan and add Utah Office of Preservation “Historic Site Form” from AINW
Structures #5080, #5100, and #7030: Combined Kitchen and Mess Halls 

[image: image8.jpg]



Structure #5080
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Structure #5100
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Structure # 7030
Constructed 1942-1943

Architectural Description

The structures are located in the west portion of Camp Williams, south of Nevada Avenue.  Reinforced concrete footings, foundations, and concrete floors support the masonry kitchen and mess hall buildings.   The walls and interior partitions are concrete block covered with a cement plaster skim coat.  The original windows, many of which remain, are 6/6 pane, double-hung steel sash with sills (stone sills are depicted in the original 1936 plans although the sills appear to be concrete), metal screens, and concrete lintels.  Wooden shutters originally flanked the windows in the 1936 design plan.  Gable roofs are covered with composition shingles that replaced the original asphalt shingles.  On Structure #5100, rafters are exposed under the eaves, wooden fascia boards are present on the gable ends, and wooden frieze boards are present on the long north-south axis.  Many of the original three-panel doors with upper reinforced glass have been replaced with steel doors.  A few original wooden screen doors remain.  Concrete stoops are present at many of the doors.  A square-block, red brick chimney with stone or concrete cap, metal ventilators, and metal smoke pipes remain on the roofs.  East-facing additions were put on the buildings in 1948-1949.  The additions were built of masonry similar to the original construction.

Structure #5080 was re-roofed and aluminum soffits and fascias were added in 1993.  Structure #7030 was remodeled in 1954.

History

Adjutant General W.G. Williams requested assistance in 1941 from the Works Progress Administration to construct the masonry kitchen/mess halls that would accommodate 208 men each.  The buildings were not built until after the UTARNG entered federal service in 1943, which occurred because of the outbreak of World War II.  Located on the west side of camp, an area platted for camp expansion in the early 1940s, eight combined kitchen/mess halls were erected by the Federal government during the war when the camp had been turned over to the War Department for use as a training site.  Seven were built in a row along Nevada Avenue (including Structures #5080 and #5100) and the eighth (Structure #7030) on Utah Avenue.  The buildings were modified in 1949-1950 (the camp returned to state control in 1947) to their present T-form when the camp was expanded for post-war training.  Structure #510 is the best intact example in this series of mess halls. 

Xx scan and add three Utah Office of Preservation “Historic Site Forms” from AINW
Structure #5130: Battalion Headquarters
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Building #5130
Constructed c. 1942-1943

Architectural Description

The Battalion Headquarters is located on Utah Avenue in the southwest portion of the cantonment.  It is a rectangular, concrete block building covered with a cement-plaster skim coat.  The gable roof currently has composition shingles.  The original brick chimney and two metal cylindrical ventilators remain on the roof.  The window frames have unpainted concrete sills and the lintels are original construction, although the window panes have been replaced with double-hung sash vinyl windows.  The eaves have been boxed with aluminum soffits and fascias.  An original door on the west elevation has been filled in.  The north elevation door has the original bracketed shed roof over the stoop, although the double doors have been replaced.  The building appears to have been built using a 1936 architectural plan.  The headquarters building originally had 6/6 double-hung wood sash windows flanked by wooden shutters.

History

Historical information concerning the Battalion Headquarters has not been found.  The date of 1942-1943 for the building is surmised because it appears on the 1948 map and it was probably built during the ealy-1940s Army development period.  Also, the building may be associated with two nearby officer’s latrines (#5110 and #5150), which are thought to have been built during this period.  The early 1940s saw the largest physical expansion at Camp Williams because of America’s involvement in World War II.

Structure #5130 is the only one of its type on the cantonment, although there are several similar buildings that have been substantially altered.  Structure #5130 exhibits architectural integrity and may be one of the more important officers’ buildings related to Camp Williams during World War II.  It is currently used for offices.
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Structures #5110 and #5150: Masonry Latrines
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Structure #5110
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Structure #5150
Constructed c. 1942-1943

Architectural Description

The masonry latrines are rectangular buildings located in the south part of the west half of Camp Williams, along Utah Avenue.  The buildings have concrete foundations, concrete block walls covered with cement-plaster skim coats, gable roofs covered with composition shingles, and original metal cylindrical vents and brick chimneys.  Windows are the original, 12-pane glazing with screens in the lower half, projecting concrete sills, and concrete lintels.  Structure #5150 has the original five-panel doors, although the original doors on #5110 have been replaced. 

History

The two latrines were built circa 1942-1943 as small structures near the West Parade Field.  Structure #5110, the larger of the two, may have been an enlisted men’s latrine and #5150 an officer’s latrine.  The latrines were located near tent areas along Utah Avenue.  The latrines were constructed during the largest expansion period at Camp Williams, at the start of America’s involvement in World War II.  The two latrines are considered significant because they exhibit integrity and are associated with the World War II training period at Camp Williams.  Because the latrines are structurally intact, they are able to convey the historic period through their appearances.  Of the two masonry latrines, Structure #5150 is the more intact example of this type of building since it retains its original size and detailing.

Xx scan and add two Utah Office of Preservation “Historic Site Forms” from AINW
Structure #7060: Dispensary
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Building #7060
Constructed c. 1942-1943

Architectural Description

Structure #7060 was built as a dispensary in the southwestern portion of the cantonment.  The long, rectangular building has a concrete foundation, concrete structural framing (concrete blocks) covered with stucco skim coat, and a gable roof covered with composition shingles. The original concrete window lintels and sills as well as the window frames are intact, although 1/1 vinyl windows have replaced the original sashes.  An original door on the north elevation has been replaced with an aluminum frame window although the original porch with shed roof and knee braces remains.  Most of the remodeling occurred in 1985.  An original three-panel wooden door remains on the south elevation.  Three original metal ventilators are on the roof ridgeline.  Also, the original red-brick chimney remains.  The bathroom is original with wooden stalls for the toilets and showers remaining.

History

The dispensary building was probably built during 1942-1943, when Camp Williams was expanded due to the entry of the United States into World War II.  A 1941 proposal to the Works Progress Administration (WPA) for the construction of the building was found in files at the UTARNG Draper complex.  Information about its use as a dispensary is unknown.  It is likely that a more substantial building was needed once the camp was enlarged to replace the small, circa 1931 hospital that was previously in use.  

The building is considered significant because it is an intact example of a World War II masonry building on Camp Williams with a high degree of architectural integrity.  Today the building serves as the Engineering Facility Office, housing engineering blueprints, maps, files, and reports pertaining to construction and physical improvements in camp.

Structures #3020, #3040, #3080, and #3100: Enlisted Men’s Latrines
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Structure #3020
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Structure #3040
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Structure #3080
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Structure #3100
Constructed 1948-1950

Architectural Description

The latrines are rectangular structures located in the west section of Camp Williams along the south side of Wyoming Avenue.  Although the latrines were built in a three-year period, they were all built using the same architectural plan.  The structures were built from concrete block, including the foundations, the original windows, found on #3040, #3080, and #3100, are fixed, 12-pane, metal-mullion windows with screens on the lower halves.  Windowsills and lintels are the original pre-cast concrete.  Most of the original doors remain.  Structure #3040 also has an original wooden screen door on the south elevation.  The original shed roofs supported by knee braces remain over the concrete stoops.  The roofs have composition shingles but were originally covered with asbestos shingles.  All of the buildings have the original brick chimneys with concrete caps.  In addition, all have original cylindrical metal roof vents.  The 1949 plan shows that a metal ridge vent along the roof axis was planned for each building but not executed.

History

Structures #3040 and #3100 were built in 1949 or 1950 when the camp was expanding its structural facilities.  Structure #3080 was probably built in 1948, based on the Biennial Report and aerial photographs.  A 1949 blueprint is probably an update of an earlier plan, which accounts for the 1948 building in the same design.  The buildings are considered significant because they retain architectural integrity and are able to convey their original function and capacity.  The buildings are associated with the 1948-1954 post-war expansion of Camp Williams, which occurred under the advisory of the United State Army at the start of the Cold War and America’s involvement in the Korean War.  

Structure #3100 is the most architecturally intact, including exterior and interior, in this group of enlisted men’s latrines.  The interior has been partially modified, but the original sinks and toilet spaces remain.  Structures #3040 and #3080 also still serve as latrines, while Structure #3020 has been converted to administrative offices.
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Structure #7020: Outdoor Amphitheater
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Building #7020
Constructed 1951

Architectural Description

The outdoor amphitheater consists of a large steel-plate “screen,” curved concrete seats with no backs, and a small concrete-block building behind the screen.  The screen is supported by wooden 2x4’s and bolted-steel bracing.  The stage is composed of a concrete block foundation with concrete decking and steps.  There are ten plastic chairs lined up on the stage, indicating the stage is used for presentations and similar events.  Wording on the screen reads: “The Premier ‘Training Center’ of Choice, Camp W.G. Williams, Utah National Guard, 1914.”  The concrete seats are original but were re-surfaced in 1993.  The seats form two sections, each about 25 rows.  The flooring under the seats is asphalt.  The small building associated with the stage is constructed of concrete block, with a metal soffit and fascia and aluminum windows.

History

The outdoor stage theater was built in 1951 as the “West Bowl” theater, in honor of J. Wallace West, Adjutant General at the time.  The theater capacity was 4,000.  It was primarily used for recreation and training purposes.  The amphitheater is considered significant for its important role in training and entertaining the troops, and is used for the same purpose today.
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